.
Lo #

NEWTON

Parks & Recreation

Newton Parks & Recreation Commission

Meeting Minutes Robert 1. DeRubeis
Interim )

Setti D. W . R :
€ ti\/'ay(}rarren Clty Hal!, war Memorlal, 7:00pm Commissioner

April 26, 2010

Attending: Arthur Magni, Chairman, Kathleen Heitman, Vice Chairman, Walter
Bernheimer, Richard Tucker, Bethel Charkoudian, Donald Fishman, Afternate, Jack
Neville, Afternate, Peter Kastner, Alternate, Michael Clarke, Alternate, Robert
DeRubeis, Interim Commissioner, Robin McLaughiin, Secretary

Absent: Fran Rice, Peter Johnson
Also Attending: Officer Ralph Torres, Animal Control Officer
Meeting called to order at 7:00 p.'m.

Chairman Magni introduced and welcomed the newly appointed Commission
members: - ‘ .
Bethel Charkoudian- Ward1 Richard Tucker — Ward 7
Andrew Stern - Ward 6 (not present) Donald Fishman - Alternate

1. Meeting Minutes from the March 15, 2010 meeting accepted 8-0

2. Commissioner’s Reports on Programs, Forestry and Maintenance
= Interim Commissioner DeRubeis reviewed the departments “snapshot” -
(see Attachment).
» Newton Serves — Sunday, April 25 was a success. There were 45
projects run throughout the city.

3. Off-Leash Area Working Group (OLAWG) — Presentation
» Interim Commissioner DeRubeis presented the Off Leash Area Working
Group (OLAWG) presentation. The presentation will be posted on-line:
http.//www.ci.newton.ma.us/Parks/Doglnformation/index. Atm
» Interim Commissioner DeRubeis reviewed how OLAWG was created by
the Commission and listed the members of OLAWG:
o Robert J. DeRubeis, Interim Parks & Recreation Commissioner
Susan Albright, Alderman
Walter Bernheimer, Parks & Recreation Commission
Ann Dorfman, Citizen Representative
Candace Havens. Interim Planning Director
Amy Koel, DOLAC Chairman
Ted Kuklinski, Citizen Representative
Lee Mcintyre, Citizen Representative
Francis Rice, Parks & Recreation Commission

O C 0000 O0O0

Meeting Minutes -April 2010
Page 1 of i




o Carol Schein, Parks & Recreation Open Space Coordinator
o Carol Stapleton, Recreation Manager
o Officer Ralph Torres, Animal Control Officer

. The presentation included a summary of OLAWG's progress to date:

o Transparency: established OLAWG web page on City Website
to post information: '
http://www.ci.newton.ma.us/Parks/DogInformation/index.htm

o OLAWG Meetings - weekly in Room 222 at City Hall at 9:00
a.m. °

o Posted Dog Owner Survey on web page

o Developed process:

o Phase 1- Determine potential green space areas for use as
off leash recreation areas.

o Phase 2 — Determine what is required to make the green space
area viable as an off leash recreation area

o Established 13 criteria to evaluate green space areas (based
on national standards)

o Identified 76 green space areas throughout the city

o Using the criteria, 34 green space areas eliminated from the
initial site evaluations

o Group members conducted site visits of the 42 remaining
green space areas using the criteria '

o Recommending 24 green space areas for Phase 2 review

Interim Commissioner DeRubeis then presented the 24 Phase 1 green
space areas. The group has determined these 24 green space areas may
be viable as off leash areas. Interim Commissioner DeRubeis stated these
24 green space areas will be evaluated in Phase 2 before any areas are
presented to the Commission. The group will then present 3-4 areas to
the Commission in May. The Commission will have community meetings for
each area and may have to schedule special meetings for each area.

A member in the audience who identified herself a Planner for another
municipality stated the process takes a certain amount of time and
presenting 3 areas in May is a lot of work and inquired if it was possible.
Interim Commissioner DeRubeis stated the group will review the 24 areas
and present 3-4 of the sites in May. The Community meetings would be
held in June. The group will look at areas that are ready to open as is,
with no expenses, such as fencing.

Mr. Kastner suggested scheduling special meetings for June and July.
Chairman Magni stated we can discuss that at the next meeting.

4. Cold Spring Park - Off Leash Area
« Chairman Magni stated tonight is the vote to extend or cancel the use of
the off leash area in Old Cold Spring Park. o
» Mr. Bernheimer stated it makes no sense closing the off leash area (OLA) in
Old Cold Spring Park (OCSP) with the progress that is being made. Three
to four sites could open once the ordinance is revised. Mr. Bernheimer is
not sure of the Aldermen’s timeline regarding the ordinance, but it makes

Meeting Minutes —April 2010
Page 2 of 10




no sense to close the OCSP off leash area when three or four sites may be
opening July 1.

Mr. Bernheimer made the motion to keep Old Cold Spring Park off leash area operational
as an existing, legal off leash area under the original ordinance until June 30, 2010 when
the original ordinance expires. Mr. Tucker seconded the motion.

" Chalrman Magni stated the Commission will take comments from the
audience before a vote is taken. Please keep comments brief and
respectful.

= Mr. Bob Stock of Beverly Road stated there are four things he would like to
address:

1. Linkage between the Off Leash Area Working Group and keeping Cold
Spring Park open.

2. The new criteria

3. The potential sites

4. Accountability

» Mr. Stock stated at the March 19 OLAWG meeting Amy Koel commented
that at the December 2009 Commission meeting the P & R Commission
linked the success of the OLAWG with keeping Cold Spring Park open and
Mr. Bernheimer agreed with Ms. Koel. Mr. Stock stated he has read and
re-read those notes and he does not see the link except in Mr.
Bernheimer’s motion to extend Cold Spring Park off leash area for three
months. One issue is to assess if OCSP should be kept open with the same
problems while evaluating other areas. Another issue is a working
committee trying to establish a process for off leash areas in Newton. Mr.
Stock sees no connection. Mr. Bernheimer has said he has changed his
mind about OCSP being a failure, but nothing has changed it has the same
problems. Again he links the progress of the group with OCSP remaining
open. The neighborhood is being held hostage.

* Mr. Stock commented OLAWG has identified criteria for off leash areas.

~ Almost every criteria begins with “due consideration given to...” Mr. Stock
does not know the meaning of this statement and the statement leaves
the criteria vague and open for different interpretation on a case by case
basis. Mr. Stock appreciates the work the OLAWG is doing. Mr. Stock
stated, in a previous e-mail Mr. Bernheimer has wrote specification
requirements are needed, Mr. Stock does not consider these criteria as
specifications, specifications would be things like a fence or hours
required. There is no instruction on how to address problems. The criteria
require more definition.

= Mr. Stock commented it has taken 4 months for OLAWG to identify
additional sites and by the time the group follows the process and has
other parks opened it could be up to nine months. The process for
establishing other OLA in other Newton communities should be applied to
the Old Cold Spring Park community.

« Mr. Stock commented dog parks in Newton are a good idea. It is nhot a
good idea for just one Dog Park in Newton.

= Mr. Stock requested the new Commission members refrain from voting on
the CSP extension, they are new to the Commission and the issue. If the

Meeting Minutes —April 2010
Page 3 of 10




new members vote, then unfortunately the lack of transparency and
integrity that has permeated this process over the last 18 months will

~ continue.

» Mr. Stock commented he finds the timing of these new commission
appointments by the Mayor ironic, it does not seem very transparent and
transparency is his calling card. It is finally time to do the right thing;
define a program for dog parks in this city, create standards and evaluate
each area using these standards and include CSP in this evaluation. Until
this happens it is not right to keep Old Cold Spring Park open.

» Mr. Lee McIntyre of 607 Commonwealth Ave commented over the past year
since the legal off leash area has been opened there have been no major
incidents, it would be a good idea to have Animal Control Officer Torres
comment on the off leash area tonight. All the dire predictions that were
predicted when the off leash area was made legal have failed to come to
pass, in fact it works as it always has worked because it has been a
defacto off leash area for 25 years. It has not been overrun with visitors,
the parking issues on Beverly Rd and Duncklee St has dissipated, the field .
remains clean. To close the park now does not make sense. We are on the
cusp, as we have seen tonight new off leash areas are being presented.
The Mayor is not just in favor or opening other off leash areas throughout
the City but also in keeping Old Cold Spring Park open. The City is making
good progress in opening new areas and that was a criteria proposed at
the last meeting as a condition in keeping Old Cold Spring Park open and
the City has met this criteria. The only thing that would be accomplished
by closing Old Cold Spring Park tonight would be confusion. The City
would be going backwards by not having any legal off leash areas in
Newton. We are close to opening new off leash areas and this is what the
neighbors of Old Cold Spring Park have been requesting. Please do not
close Old Cold Spring off leash area.

» Ms. Lynn Lieberman of Brewster Rd commented there have been dogs off
leash in Cold Spring Park for over 20 years. Ms. Lieberman takes her dogs
there sometimes twice a day every day. Since the off leash area has been
legal she has been there every day and yes the park is different now, the
park is cleaner, the off leash dog owners who use the park believe so
strongly in this park the users “police” each other and watch out for each
others dogs. If the off leash area were to close there would be mass
confusion and people will not stop going to the park. Ms. Lieberman loves
the off leash area and the City needs the legal off leash area.

» Ms. Alla Mantsur of Jaconnet Rd commented another change is the parking
restrictions on Beverly and Duncklee St. The parking issues on these
streets have been less; she has been around these streets and has not
seen cars or buses on the access road. And this is because of the legal off
leash areas. Ms. Mantsur is a teacher and using an education comparison,
before only wealthy people could attend private schools, now middle class
and low income people have access to private schools. More people have
access to better life. Change is hard for some people and giving access to
“jewels” of Newton is difficult for some neighbors but this access allows
everyone for a chance at a better quality of life. Please do not close Old
Cold Spring Park.

Meeting Minutes —April 2010
Page 4 of 10




= Mr. Rick Dyer of Terrace Ave commented the problem at Cold Spring Park
is the off leash dogs on the 18 station exertrail. The trail is also used by
the track team. Last year the track team sent bikes ahead to clear the
trail for the team. The off leash area has created more dogs on the trail;
| there were dogs before it was legal but it is different now. This has
| ' discouraged runners from running in the park Parking is still an issue;
: there is no access to this park.

» June Goodman of Woodward St. commented she takes her dog to Old Cold
Spring Park, her dog is not doing well and will not benefit from the use of
Old Cold Spring Park. Ms. Goodman stated she is here to support the
other dog owners who use the off leash area. If other communities can

- have off leash areas, Newton can too.

« Kim Vanamen commented she has taken her dog to Old Cold Spring Park
off leash area and has used the Braceland Park. Ms. Vanamen stated
because the off leash area was made legal it brought up issues that
needed to be addressed, it opened a dialogue and the issues are being
addressed. Ms. Vanamen would be sorry to see Old Cold Spring Park
close. Other areas should be opened to minimize the burden on Old Cold
Spring Park.

= Chairman Magni requested Ofﬂcer Ralph Torres give a report on the off
leash area at Old Cold Spring Park. Officer Torres stated he takes all
‘complaints seriously. Since March 15™ 2010 the weather has been good.
Compliance has been good, the park is clean. Officer Torres stated overall
he has seen steady improvement in the off leash area at Old Cold Spring
Park. Chairman Magni asked for questions of Officer Torres.

Q. Has Officer Torres noticed a decrease in dog aggression since the park
was made into a'legal off leash area?

A. There have been no issues in Cold Spring Park

Q. Has aggression decreased throughout the city?

~A. Officer Torres responded he believes aggression has decreased.

= Chairman Magni asked for final comments from the Commission Members.

= Mr. Kastner stated the motion shouid be amended to read the hours may
be set in the off leash area at the discretion of the P & R Commissioner.
And dogs off leash on the trail should be illegal and the number of dogs
allowed may be limited by the P & R Commissioner. Mr. Bernheimer stated
there is already a rule limiting the number of dogs per person and dogs off
leash on the trails is already illegal, but he sees no problem with allowing
the commissioner the discretion to set hours as required.

= Mr. Fishman stated clarity of the motion is good. There motion is for two
months; we should proceed with the motion as seconded No harm will
come in the two months.

Mr. Bernheimer made the motlon'to keep Old Cold Spring Park off leash area operational
as an existing, legal off leash area under the original ordinance until June 30, 2010 when
the original ordinance expires. Mr. Tucker seconded the motion.

Mr. Kastner amended the motion to include the P & R Commissioner has authority to
restrict hours in the off leash area as required. Mr. Tucker seconded the motion.

: The motion and amendment passed with a vote of 7-1

Meeting Minutes —April 2010
Page 5 of 10




5. St. Mary Carmen Festival — 2nd Meetmg
= Mr. Chuck Proia the festival chairman gave an overview of the festival. The
dates of the festival are July 14 through July 18, 2010. Mr. Proia stated
there are no changes to the festival from last year. This is the 75" year of
the festival and the Cardinal will be part of the festival. Mr. Proia
introduced Mr. John Flynn, the Manager/Owner of Fiesta Shows and asked
if the Commission had any questions for Mr. Flynn.
! : Ms. Heitman stated the festival is a wonderful event for everyone and
thanked all involved with the festival. '
Interim Commissioner DeRubeis commented that since Mr. Flynn has taken
over management of the festival six years ago, the festival has run
smoothly, the quality of the rides is good and his workmanship in handllng
the group is excellent.
An abutter of Pelligrini playground stated he has fa|th in Mr. Proia. Each
year the issues, such as noise, at the festival have improved.
No other abutters were present or had any comments,

Ms. Heitrman made the motion to approve the St. Mary of Carmen Festival as submitted.
Mr. Clarke seconded the motion. The motion passed §-0.

6. Nahanton Park — Farm Proposal

« Peter J. Barrer, Board President, Newton Community Farm, Inc. stated
Angino Farm has an overflow of interest but is limited by space Mr.
Barrer has submitted a proposal (attached) for the Newton Community
Farm (NCF) to partner with Newton Parks and Recreation to expand
programming and usage of Nahanton Park.

= Mr. Barrer stated they are aware of the concerns of the birdmg
community, the Friends of Nahanton Park and the Newton
Conservators. The area is being lost to the forest. Farm land is better
for the birds; farmed land gives the birds places to hide.

* Mr. Barrer is proposing 4 possible areas. The first is the "Lower Brush
Area” (#1). Ms. Heitman asked if this was off Winchester Street. Mr.
Barrer replied no. Chairman Magni asked if this area Parks &
Recreation Land. Interim Commissioner DeRubeis stated yes. The
second area is the “Overgrown Community Garden Area” (#2}, the
third is the meadow of “mowed area” (#3), and the fourth area is a
wooded area (?). The soil in the meadow would have to be tested to

 be made farmable.

=  Mr. Bernheimer asked if site #3 is across from the proposed off leash
‘area. Interim Commissioner stated yes and site #3 is a snow dump.

= Mr. Kastner asked if there was interest in farming up hill. Interim .
Commissioner DeRubeis stated site #1 was where the group looked at
during a site visit with Mr. Barrer. This is a scrub area that would have
to be cleaned up and trees would have to be taken down. Site #3 was
a proposed as an off leash area and there was considerable objection
from the birders. The birders did not want the meadow disturbed.

« Mr. Bernheimer asked if the Community Gardens usage has declined.
Interim Commissioner DeRubeis stated yes, site #2 is unused.

Meeting Minutes —April 2010
Page 6 of 10




» Mr. Tucker inquired about the area marked with a (?). Mr. Barrer
stated this area has large, evasive trees that would be expensive to
remove. Mr. Kastner stated this area is currently used as an illegal
dump site. If the area is being used maybe people will be discouraged
from using the site as an illegal dump.

» Interim Commissioner DeRubeis stated the Tree Warden checked the
area and was not concerned with trees being taken down in area #1.

= Interim Commissioner DeRubeis area #2 is the existing gardens, the
fee details would have to be worked out otherwise the farm could use
the area right away. But the other three areas would require public
meetings. .

» Mr. Barrer stated the cost to restore the soil will be between
$15,000.00 and $20,000.00 dollars. Angino Farm could pay for water
use but could not afford to pay a fee to use the land. Mr. Bernheimer
asked if there could be any co-ventures or in-kind service in place of
fees. Mr. Barrer stated yes, educational programs could be provided.

= Mr. Clarke inquired what type of legal agreement would be required,

: would it be a lease agreement. Mr. Barrer stated Angino Farms has a
| License Agreement to use the land; the same type of agreement could
be used for Nahanton Park. '

=  Ms. Charkoudian inquired if the farm requires two of the 4 sites. Mr.
Clarke stated site #3 is the unused community gardens and are
available to the public. A resident in the audience stated he heard
there was a waiting list for the unused community gardens. Interim
Commissioner DeRubeis stated he will check with Ms. Dore the
Recreation Manager in charge of the gardens.

= Mr. Barrer stated Newton Community Farm, Inc. would require a long
term commitment; they would be using private donations to prepare
and maintain the areas for farming. '

Mr. Tucker made the motion to move the proposal to a pub/ic meeting. Mr. Clarke
seconded the motion. Motion passed 8-0.

7. Taiwan Garden- Hyde Community Centre Playground

= Ward 5 Alderman John Rice and Jack Wang of the Taipei Economic Culture
Center of Boston presented a proposal (attached) for a Taiwan Garden at
the Hyde Community Center. Alderman Rice commented the process
began with Carol Schein, the Open Space Coordinator, in the Parks & -
Recreation Department. The proposal is to design a garden located
adjacent to the former Hyde School in the Hyde Playground on Lincoln
Street, this garden will be dedicated to the Hyde Community Center and
Taipei Economic Culture office in Boston (located at 90 Lincoln Street
Newton Highlands). Creation of an authentic Chinese garden is to be
effected by use of plant material indigenous to China and the
embellishment of the plantings with architectural elements singularly
Chinese. .

= Alderman Rice stated the group would like this garden to be the center
point for the Newton Highlands. The community has invested
approximately $4-$5 thousand dollars on this project to date.

Meeting Minutes —April 2010
Page 7 of 10




Alderman Rice is requesting permission to move the fence back 20 feet
from the street. Alderman Rice has spoken with representatives from
Newton South Little League and they have no issues with the fence being
moved.

Mr. Clarke asked if there will be benches on the street side of the fence.
Alderman Rice stated yes, there is currently one bench and the group
would tike three more.

Mr. Clarke asked if the plants selected are non invasive. Alderman Rice
stated yes and there will be a team to maintain the project.

Mr. Kastner inquired why a Taiwan Garden. Alderman Rice stated the Hyde
Community Center has a 60 year lease with the City and the office has
been subleased to the Taiwan Cultural Office. The Taiwan Cultural Office
would like to give back to Newton. Mr. Kastner stated the group should
check with the Chinese exchange program. A guest from Taiwan saw a
flag from Taiwan hanging in the schools and became very upset.

Ms. Charkoudian inquired if bamboo was going to be planted. Alderman
Rice stated no, but there will be rock formations and bushes pianted along
the fence line for privacy.

Ms. Charkoudian commented the proposal states there will be no roots
penetrating below five feet in depth. Ms. Charkoudian inquired why this
statement would be included if it was not a concern. Alderman Rice stated
Rich Abrams who is assisting with the proposal knows what should be
noted in a report. Ms. Charkoudian asked if this was noted because the
plants will become invasive. Alderman Rice stated Mr. Abrams has done
his research. Ms. Charkoudian asked how Mr. Abrams will prevent the
roots from growing past the 5 foot depth. Alderman Rice commented they
could come up with a plan. Ms. Charkoudian stated she would like to see
a report.

= Chairman Magni requested Alderman Rice bring Mr. Abrams to the second

meeting.

= Mr. Tucker inquired if the proposal includes maintenance. Alderman Rice
stated yes. Mr. Bernheimer requested to see the maintenance plan in

writing. Alderman Rice agreed to provide a written maintenance plan.

Mr. Bernheimer made the motion to move the proposal to a public meeting. Mr. Fishman
seconded the motion. Motion passed 8-0.

8. Mike Pinta- NELL — Jay Gordon Field

= Mr. Pinta stated he is the general counsel for Newton East Little League
(NELL). This past weekend NELL held the opening day parade and Mayor
Warren threw out the first pitch.

= Mr. Pinta stated he is requesting permission from the Commission to make
improvements to the little league bench area at Jay Gordon Field. Each
year the water puddles under the benches and is getting worse. NELL has
added bluestone to build up the area, but the blue stone is not working.

» NELL would like to hire Tom Forte to fix the problem and is requesting
permission to add concrete slabs and new benches in the area. Firsta
layer of crushed stone would be added to the area then the concrete

Meeting Minutes —April 2010
Page 8 of 10




would be poured at an angle so the water will run off the back end of the

concrete slab. The new benches would be cemented into the concrete.

Chairman Magni asked if the concrete slab would create a tripping hazard.

Mr. Pinta stated no, the area would be filled. Interim Commissioner
DeRubeis stated Mike Baldi in the Engineering Department recommended
feathering the edges of the concrete slab to the grass line.

« Mr. Pinta stated NELL would be paying for the concrete slabs and benches.

» Mr. Kastner inguired if additional fencing would be required. Mr. Pinta
stated no. The National Little League Association has ruled that it is
unsafe to have an on deck circle; when the on deck area was removed the
fence area was reduced. '

» Mr. Clarke inquired if the slab goes in front of the dugout. Mr. Pinta stated
there is no structure. Interim Commissioner DeRubeis stated there is no
dugout structure, there is only fencing.

= Mr: Bernheimer stated this is a field and may not always be used as a little
league field. An agreement should be made with NELL stating NELL will
remove the concrete slabs and restore the field to it's original condition if
they are no longer using the-little league field.

» Mr. Clarke agreed with Mr. Bernheimer and asked why bluestone has not
been tried to stop the build up of water. Mr. Pinta stated NELL has tried
blue stone and it does not work. The have checked into drains, but the
blue stone would cleg the drains.

= Ms. Charkoudian asked if NELL researched portable/removable decking.

Mr. Pinta asked where the water would drain from on the portable
decking. Ms. Charkoudian stated the water would drain the same way as
the concrete pads.

= Mr. Pinta stated NELL maintains the field and could agree to remove the
concrete slabs in the future.

« Mr. Clarke stated he would like to see other optlons. Mr. Pinta stated NELL
is just trying to make the area more usable.

» Mr. Bernheimer asked when the concrete pads would be completed if
approved. Mr, Pinta stated if the proposal is approved at the May 17
Commission meeting, the work would be completed in June.

Mr. Kastner made the motion to move the NELL proposal to a public hearing.
Mr. Fishman seconded the Motion.
Ms. Charkoudian amended the motion to include non-concrete suggestions be
presented at the public hearing. Mr. Clarke seconded the motfon
The motion passed 4-2-1. (Mr. Tucker left the meeting)

9. Crystal Lake & Gath Pool Swim Fees
» Fees Submitted:
Crystal Lake
Opens- Monday - June 14, 3 PM
Closes Sunday - to be determined
Gath Pool
Opens- Monday - June 14, 3 PM
Closes Labor Day - Monday - September 6, 2010 5PM
Summer Swim Permit:

Meeting Minutes —April 2010
Page 9 of 10




Permits are issued to RESIDENTS ONLY for the summer season.

Fees are nonrefundable.

Adults (18 years of age and older) cost $45.00 for the season

Students are considered (any person age 6 through 18 years of age) $20. 00

per person.

Seniors (age 62 and over) $20.00 per person

Resident Adult Daily fee $6.00

Resident Student Daily Fee: $4.00

Resident Senior Daily: $4.00

Non-Resident Daily Fee $10.00 each.

Residents with financial hardship may apply to the Commlssmner of Parks

and Recreation for a scholarship/fee waiver.

Summer swim permits are valid at both Crystal Lake and Gath Pool

» Mr. Bernheimer asked if the fees were the same as last year. Interim
Commissioner DeRubeis stated yes and this will be addressed in the
budget update. '

» Interim Commissioner DeRubeis referenced the P & R Budget book included
in the Commission member packets. The back page of the budget book
lists the proposed 2011 budget cuts presented to the Mayor and the Board
of Alderman. The cuts are approximately $367K dollars.

» Mr. Bernheimer stated one of the cuts was to seasonal wages. How do the
swim areas remain open with a reduction in seasonal wages?

= Interim Commissioner DeRubeis stated the department is pulling together
to get things done. Two positions have been cut. There have been no cuts
to service. Fees will be re-evaluated next year.

Mr. Bernheimer made the motion to accept the swim fees as submitted. Mr. Fishman
seconded the motion. The motion passed 7-0.

Meeting Adjourned at 9:29 pm
Respectfully submitted,

Robin MeLaughlin, Secretary

Meeting Minutes —April 2010
Page 10 of 10




Z Jo T 9beq

00'61E0bE ${00°2T6°26 $.| 00'982'895 $ [ o0'6EE’0L  $ SSPIUDA - [EJusy,

00°'8+9°£S $ 1 0001 $ | 00°05£'29 $100€96'8 $ | BWILSAQ Jejnbay
|oQuoD) IDI/MOUS
: : T Kousbiowy

00'TSO'EVE'TS 00'T9C'ZbT$ | 00'988°00T°'T$ | 00°9T0°98% |le30) Buiajorsy.
00'£96'8T$ 00°18¢'Z1$ 00'0b6'v/$ -1 00'008'0T$ DDURUIPIO 3341
00°6/9'v1$ 00'0$ 00'S£2'12$ 00°0% uey adedsspuen
00'052'92% 00'6/6'p% 00'808'7¢$ 00202+ - suazn) Joluas
00°6£S0PT$ 00'2be’01$ 00'8TH'041$ 00’642 '8T$ Syied 8y3 ul Spy
00'688°9TH$ 00'c8'81$ 00'699'bLE$ 00'66F'6$ sdwep|
00'zzL's1L$ . | 00°02400T$ 00'9/2'92b% 00'99Z'ch$ SORIAIPY/SISSe)D
puirjonay
00'E8E'SEY'ES | 00'EY8’66€$S | O0'ELV'ESY'ES | 00°6E8'LLES _ bunesado
: _ SISNIdXT _ )
"@-1AOTAd [ 0T | Q-1-A-60Ad . | 60~EW |

00°'79Z'vS0’T$ 00'+10’6ZT$ | 00°Z£9'V66% 00'69L'FYT$ [I210L butAjoaaY
00'089°/1% 00°059% 00'0SH' VLS - 00'00Z$ oURUIPIO 3311
00'CTH'TES 00°508'c$ 00°02T'2$ 00°090°1$ “Juiel adedspuen
00'6b6°25$ 00°096"9% 00'TET'THS 00°505'/$ SUIZRID JOIUDS
00°'58£'651% 00°952'S$ 00T LSTS 00°65£°0Z$ Syied ay3 Ul sHY
00°567'S52$ 00°0£58¢$ 0067 b1T$ 00°'bS6'T+$ _ JE:s)
00°0bS'££S$ 00€2L'EL$ 00°H€8°€0S$ 00'169°¢/$ SeINAIDY/SI55RID
I i bulAjoAaYy
00°9/8°08% 00Z08'T$ 00'ZZ¥'69% 00798°Z$ bunesado
‘ FNNIATY _

SWPWWo) |  G-LAOTAd | OT-®W | Q-LA-60Ad | 60-4eW |

s103e21pu] |elDURUL]

UOLEDIDY G ]

Bunaaly uolssiuwo)d 0T0Z/9Z/v -

JOUSaeus Juswpedaq Uoneatddy g syied
010c Y18 NOLM3N 40 ALID




